UNITED NATIONS
ECONOMIC B/4Ce7/5R.159

A N D 16 Auguat 1950

SOCIAL COUNCIL ==&  oomi s

GENERAL

ECONOMIC AND SOCInL COUNCIL
Eleventh Session
SO0CIL.L COMMITTEE

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE HUNDRED »ND FIFTY-NINTH MEETING

Held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Tuesday, 1 sugust 1950, at 3 p.m.

CONTENTS: ’ puges

l, Secretary-General'!s Communication L

2, Refugees and stateless persons
(item 32 of the agenda) (resumed
from the 158th meeting)

Report of the nd hoc Committee on
Statelessness and Related Problems

(E/1618, E/1618/Corr,1, E/1703,
E/1703/Corr.l, E/1703/sdd.1 =~ 6,
E/1704, E/170./Corr,l and 2, E/L.79,
E/L.79/4dd.1, E/L,81, E/L.8&2,
E/4Cs7/L459, and E/AC.7/L,63)

Dafinition of "refugee" in artiele 1
of the draft Convention (continued) L~ 1,




E/AC.7/5R.159

page 2
‘Present: : : : .
Chairman: Mr, DAVIDSON (Canada), Vice Chairman
Members:
Australia , Mr, DESCHAMPS
\Bel.gium _ Mr. DELHAYE
Brazil : Mr, PENTEADO
Canada Miss MEAGHER
Chile . " Mr. BERNSTEIN
China : _ : Mr, CHa
Denmark ' Mr, FRIIS
France Mrs ROCHEFORT
India Mr, DESAI
Iran Mr, KHALATBARY
Mexieo Mr, de ALBA
Pakistan Mr, BROHI
Peru o | Mr, CABaDA
United Kingdem of Great Britain _
- and Northern' Ireland Mr, FEARNLEY
United States of America Mr, HENKIN
Representatives ef specialized a:gencies: _
International Labour Organisation Mr. FLORES
International Refugee Organization " Sir Arthur RUCKER
' ‘ Mr, COHEN
Mr, BLANCHARD
Mr. KULIMANN
Rep_resentat.ives‘or non-governmental organizations:
| Category A
World Federation ef Trade Unions Mr, DESAU

Internatienal Confederation of Free
Trade Uniens Miss SENDER



E/AC.7/SR.159
page 3

Representatives of non-governmental organizatiens (centinued):

Category B and Register

fathelic International Union for Scocial

- Service , Miss de ROMER
Commission of the Churches an International Mr, MOURAVIEFF
Affairs Mr, REES
Consultative Council uf Jewish Organizations Mr, TEMKIN
Friends i World Committee for Consultatien Mr., BELL
International Co~cperative Woments Guild Miss ROSSIER
Internativnal Union of Cathwlic Women'!s Leagues Miss de ROMER
International Union for Child Welfare Miss DINGMAN
Liaison Committes of.WOmenfs Internaticnal
Organizaticns Miss ROSSIER
'World Jewish Congress Mr., RIEGNER
World's Young Women's Christian Association ' Mrs, BERESFORD FOX

Secretariat: .

" Mr, Humphrey ’ Director, Division of Human Rights
Mr, Alexander Department of Social Affairs
Mr, Hogan Department of Social affairs

‘Mr, Dumontet " Secretary to the Committee



E/aC47/5R4159
page &

1, SECRETARY~GENER.L'S COMMUN ICATION

The CHAIRM.XN drew the attention of the mseting to the comunicatién
from the Secretary-General (B/1807) announcing the adoption by the Security
Council on 31 July 1950 of a resolution on assistance for the civil population

of Korea,

2, REFUGEES AND STATELESS PERSONS (item 32 of the agenda) (resumed from the
158th meeting)

Report of the id hoc Committee on Statelessness and Related Problems

(8/1618, E/1618/Corr,1, E/1703, E/1703/Corr.1, E/1703/Add.1~6,
E/170k4, E/1704/Corr.l and 2, E/L.79, E/L.79/xdd.1; E/L.81,
E/L.82, E/nC.7/Ls59 and E/sC.7/L.63)

Definition of "refugee" in article 1 of the draft Convention (continued)

The CHaIRMaN called for a resumption of the discussion on the
alternative proposals for.the definition of the term "refugee" prepared by the
&d hoc Committes (E/1618) for inclusion in the draft Convention.

Mro. DESCHaMPS (australia) ussociated himself with the views expreeaa;l
by the United States representative at the previous meet.ihg on the object and
scope of the definition of the term "refugee"s His Government considered it
inportant that the categories covered by that term should be precisely defined
in any instrument involving definite legal obligations, He welcomed the
United States representative's reply ‘to the representative of Chile, to the
effect that section B in the nd hoc Committee!s report was to be taken as a
mere recammendation, and that any addition to the categories established in
the text of the Convention would require the consent of the Contracting Parties.
The provision in that paragrap'h answered the objection of the Mexican

representative that no provision had been made for future emergencies,

Mr, ROCHEFORT (France) observed that the discussion at the previous
meeting, while revealing conflicting points of view, had made it clear that



E/AC,7/5R,159
page 5

the definition of the term "refugee' now being studied by the Committee was
the definition which was to appear in the draft Convention, and that the
definition to be embodled in the terms of reference of the High Commissioner

for Refugees need not be considered until later,

The amendments sﬁbmitted by the United Kingdom and Belgien delegations were
designed to embody in the Convention a definition of a general nature, whereas
the French amendment proposed a definition based on a division into categories,
The best procedure would appear to be first of all to decide in principle which
of ﬁhose two alternatives to adopt. Once that principle had been settled, the
Committee could proceed to the examination of a detailed text,

Mr. FEARNLEY (United Kingdom) supported the French proposal. While
his Government would prefer a broad, general definition, it recognized that
governments might take up different positions in relation to the definition to be
included in the Convention, which, after all, laild definite legal obligations
on the Contracting Parties, and in relation to that to be included in the terms
of reference of the High Commissioner, The definition adopted in the former case

should not affect that to be adopted in the latter,

Mr. PENTEADQ (Brazil) thought a clear and simple description of what
should be understood by the term "refugee!" in specific cases would be preferable
to an all-embracing definition. He supported the French proposal, adding that

his delegation would be in favour of definition by categories,

Mr, DELHAYE (Belgium) supported the French proposal that the Committee
should first decide the issue of principle.,

He also supported the remarks of the United Kingdom representative about the
distinction to be made between the definition in the Convention and that in the

terms of reference of thé High Commissioner,

Mr, CHA (China) favoured a definition by categories, OStates that were
asked to accept the obligations laid on them by the Convention would then know
exactly what that would entail,



B/AC.7/5R,159
page 6

Miss MEAGHER (Canada) said her Government, which had reecently given cone
sideration to the question, favoured, in principle, a broad, general definition.
She had not been convinced by the arguments of principle raised against such a
definition, but she recognized the force of the argument that a broad definition
might cntail a substantial reduction in the number of governments prepared to
accede to the draft Convention. In principle, the Canadiam Government was in-
favour of a draft Convention of the type submitted, and expccted to sign one
drafted on such lines. She hoped that it would be possible to agree on a broad
dofinition such as was advocated in the United Kingdom and Belgian proposals
(E/AC,7/L.63 and B/AC.7/L.59), or at least on a morc comprehensive definition
than that provided in the ;! hoc Committee's text, but‘theée were grounds for
believing that a less satisfactorj convention signed by a large number of
governments would be preferable to a more satisfactory one to which only a few

governments would accede,

Mr. ROCHEFORT (France) drew attention to the fact that if a general
definition were adopted in the Convention, many delegations would find it
difficult to agree that article 1 of the Convention could not be subject to
reservations. However liberal it wished to be, his delegaﬁion could not, in a
contractuai text, give binding force tn a2 definition on the basis of which
France would be required unreservedly to grant the status of refugees to all

who entered her territory.

The CHAIRMAN called on the Committee to vote, as suggested by the
reprusentative of France, on the principle of whether the definition of the ternm
"refugee!! should be based on categories, as in the present text of the draft
Convention (E/1618, page 12) and the French amerdment thereto (E/L,82), or
whether it should be couched in general terms, as proposed in the Belglan and
United Kingdom amendments (R/AC.7/L.59 end E/AC.7/L.63), which represented a
wider deviation from the original text than did the French amendment,

The_proposal that the definition should be couched _in general terms was

rejocted, 7 votss being cast against and 7 for, with 1 abstention.




E/AC,77/3R,159
page 7

Mr, FEARNLEY (United Kingdom) said he would aBstaiﬂ when a vote was taken
on the alternative proposal, in order to avoid the procedural difficulty which
«would arise if Qotea were again equally divided, Whilo‘his Government, as he had |
.8aid, would have preferred a general definition, he recoghized that a number of
governments would find it difficult, if not impossible, to accede to the Con~
vention if such a definition were adopted, and he would not therefore press his

opposition tp a restricted definition at the present stage,

Mr, FRIIS (Denmark) saia his Government would have preferred a solution
on a broad humanitarian basié, but since it was apparent that a general definition
would tend substantially to reduce the number of signatories to'the Convention,

. -he had abétainéd frdm voting. He would vote in favour of a definition on the
lines suggested in the Fnench proposal.

The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the proposal that the definition of the

term "refugee" should be based on categories,

The proposal was carried by & votes to 2, with L abstentions,

Mr, FEARNLEY (United Kingdgm) reserved the position of his Government,
on the question of definition in respect of the future stages in the elaboration
of the draft Convention after it had left the Economic and Social Council,

The CHAIRMAN stated that, in view of the decision on principle which had
been adopted, the United Kingdom and Belgian amendments would be considered as

withdra.‘vm.

Mr, de ALBA.(Mexico) said his delegation maintained its attitude on the
question of substance. His Government therefore reserved its position, which it

would defend when the draft Convention was discussed by the Ceneral Assembly.

Miss MEAGHER (Canada) entered a similar reservation on behalf of the
Canadian‘Government, reserving freedom of action to the Canadian repragentatives
in the ad hoc Committee, the General issembly and any eventual diplomatic

conference,



5/AC,7/SR,159
page 8

Mr. BROHI (Pakistan) entered a similar reservation on behalf of the

deemment of Pakistan,

The CHAIRMAN drew the attention of the Coumittee to the draft definitions

given in article 1 of the draft Conventiom and in the French amendment thereto

(E/L.82).

Mr, ROCHEFORT (Francc), comparing the text of article 1 of the draft
Convention prepared by the id hoc Committec on Statelessness and Related Problens
(E/1618, pages 12 and 13) with the amendment submitted by the French delegation
(E/L.,82), pointed out in the first place that the differences were more a matter

of form than of substanoce,

Section A, paragraph 1, of the text submitted by the Ad hog Committee
concerned present or future refugees, whereas.paragraphs 2 and 3 applied to those
who had already become refugees. The French delegation had thought it more logical
to deal first with the categories which might be described as "historical’, and to
reverse the numbering, so as to place last, as paragraph 3, the provisions

concerning present or future refugeesg

Moreover, it had appeared preferable, for the sake of clarity, to deal with
all historical refugees in the same mahner, and to draft paragraph 2 of the
‘French amendment in the terms "any persdn recognised as a refuzee by the Inter-
national Refugee Orgariization", A1l thos» who had Been recognised by IRQ were

refugees, and there was no necessity to re-examine their position,

In paragraph 3 of the amendment, which corresponded to paragraph 1 of the
Ad _hoc Cormittee's draft, the French delegation believed that it had improved the
wording by removing the inconsistency caﬁsed by the use of the present tense in
sub-paragraph (a) and the past tense in sub-paragraph (b), Although it might be
necessary to leave in the date of 1 January 1951; which appeared in sub-paragraph
(a), in order to facilitate the accession of oertaiﬁ,govermuents, the French
delegtation wished at least to riake that dateline less rigorous by adding the words

"or circumstances‘directly resulting from sueh events',

The Prench delegation had thought it necessary to add a new paragraph
(E/L.82, page 2), at the end of Section A, providing that a previous negative



E/AC,7/SR.159
page 9

decision by the International Refugee Organization (IRO) could not be held against

a person claiming refugee status.

That provision was in accordance with the desire expressed by the General
Council of IRO'itself, which, after explaining in a communication dated 22 March
1950 (GC/158/Rev,1) that the Organization had had to carry out its task with
inadequate finaneial resources, and that the assumption of the functions of
proﬁcction by the United Nations would open a new phasc in that field, had adopted
2 resolution suggesting that the Economic and Social Couneil éﬁould not 'apply any
decisions previously made by the General Council or the Administration of IRO
restricting the services of JRO to refugees and displaced persons, such as the
'frecze arder! and the déﬁeiiﬁes which were adopted by IRO for purely financial

or administrative reasons',

It had therefore appeared advisable to state that the fact of not having been

declared eligible should not be a determining factor against bona fide refugees.,

The French delegation had also thought it necessary to delete the date
"3 September 1939" appearing in paragraph 1, sub-paragraph (a), of the Ad hoc
Comuittee's text, since that date was subsequent to important events which had

caused a considerable influx of refugees into France,

In section‘B, the French delégation proposed the addition of a new paragraph
concerning the right of States to conclude private agreements designed to extend
the benefits of. the Convention to new categories of refugees. The object of that
addition was tc prevent the adoption of the Convention by the General Assembly from
closing the question. Private agreements of that nature had already been con-
cluded, and constituted a most imﬁbrtant factor in the syatem of protection,
Cunsequently, the French delegation did not think that the proposed addition

should meet with any serious objections.

With regard to section C of the French amendment, he observed that the draft
amendment submitted by the United States delegation (E/AC.7/L,62) called for the
insertion of a.similar provision in the terms of reference of the High Commissioners
If such a provision were in fact inserted in those terms of reference, the French' -

delegation would not press for the insertion of its text in the draft Convention,



E/AC.7/5E.,159
page 10

In section E, dcaling with the loss of refugee status, the French délegation
had added a new paragraph, 4, regarding refugees belonging "to a German minority
in a country other than Germany and at the time in Germany enjoying the protection

of the German Government',

That case was dealt with in saction A of the «d hoc Committee's draft, but it
had scemed preferable to place it in section E, which dealt only with questions of
fact,

In conclusion, the French delegation thought that the definition it had pro=-
pdsed, which was the result of long experience, was far better than the Ad hec
Committee's toxt, which would certainly not provide a good practical instrument in
countries, such as France, receiving refugees and which‘the French Government would

be unable to accept.

Mr, CHA (China) asked the French representative how he thought the text
he had proposed'could be applied to rcfugees in Korea, whose case had just been
brought to the notice of the Council and Committee,

Mr, ROCHEF(RT (France) replied that refugees in Korea were in the same
position as Frenchmen who, in 1940, had left the north for the south of France, and
for wham there had never been any question of international protection, which would

have becen contrary to the principles of individual State sovereignty,

Mr, CABADA (Peru) was glad to speak after the representatives of those
States which were more imacdiately affected by the refugee problem. Although the
definition of the term "refugee" prepared by the Ad hoc Committee was generally
satisfactory, he could not accept the first paragraph. Of the alternative
definitions submitted, the French text seemed to be best adapted to the United
Nations conception of the problem, and was particularly satisfactory in that it
was less restrictive than the Ad hoc Committee!s draft,

Mr. HENKIN (United States of America) said that he.had becn prepared to
‘support the draft submitted by the Ad hoc Committee, Since the French draft was
based on the same principles and directed to the same ends, however, he would
accept it, with certain modifications, ' | ‘



E/AC,7/SR,159
page 11

In section A, paragraph 1, there did not seem to be any need to include the
first two dates mentioned, though he was not sure whether their inclusion would be
harmful, Paragraph 2 would be less ambiguous if it read "any person who has bucn
accepted by the International Refugee Organization as falling wder its mandate",

The last phrase of paragraph 3: "or circumstances directly resulting from such events
and owing to such fear! did not seem necessary, as its meaning was included in the
preceding phrase: "as a result of events in Eurc;pe before 1 January 1951"; its
inclusion might be dangerous, The last paragraph in sect.ior; 4L concerning eligibility

did not seem necessary in the Convention, though the principle was sound,

With regard to the second paragraph of scction B, while it, too, might well
be omitted, he would agree to its retent:ion, with certain modifications to clarify
its meoning, The phrase "without committing the United Nations" was doubtless
intended to mean that no two countries, by bilateral agfeement s could bring other
categories of refugees under the mandate of the High Commissioner; that should be
explicitly stated. The phrase "to categories of refugees not covered by the
present Article" should be avoided, as it implied that there were refugees at

present requiring protcction who would not be coverad by the Convention.

He welcomed the statement by the representative of France that he would delcte
section C, provided the corresponding United States amendrent to the Statute of

the High Commissioner was accepted,

The word "when" at the end of the first phrase in paragraph E was a mis-
translation, The French words "parce-que'" should be translated as "because!, There
were various mis-translations in the first three paragraphs of section E, which he
would denl with later, but he wished to endorse strongly the transfer qf paragraph 4
from section A to section E, as that change would make it clear that there was no
intention of discriminating against a particular racial group. It was important
that the Convention should not act as an encouragement to the Federal German
Covernment to lift its protection from the German minorities currently in process of
assimilation in that country. However, the followlng text would seem preferable:

" 4) he is a person who was a member of a German minority in another

country, and is in Germany or has taken up residence¢ thers',

As it stood, the words "enjoying the protection of the German Government¥ repeated

* the first phrase of section E. g



L/4C,7/SR,159
pag. 12

Mr. BERNSTEIN (Chile) asked the representative of France the preecisc
meaning of section B of the Frunch amendment. Did it mean that the Gencral
Asscmbly might decide to extend the definition.of the term "refugee" to other '
catepories, and that that decision would be binding bn all Contracting Sfates, or
did it mean that, if the General Assembly were to extend the term "refugee" to
other categorics, the agreement of all Contracting States would be necessary ?

' In the latter case, a protocol would be required, and paragraph B would therefore

be redundant,

Section C scemed to be phrased as a recommendation, and, in that form, should
hardly be included among thu specific provisions of a convention. Again, in the
sanic paragraph, the Higﬁ Commissionor for Refugess was mentioned for the first
time; it scumed that the whole paragraph needed re-drafting if it was to be in-

¢luded in the Convention at all.

Mr. KOCHEFOAT (France), replying to the Chilean representative, said
that it would clearly be useless for the General Assembly to recomend the
granting of refugee status to persons in new categories if governments did not
agree to such a step, Nevertheless, the provision appearing in scction B seemed
useful, since it indicated that the matter was not closed. If it were desired to
broaden the definition of refugees, all delegations would first have to have an
opportunity of expressing their views in the General Assembly, and signatory States

would‘then have po take the recommendation into account.

To the second point raised by the Chilean representative, he replied that he
had already apgreed to delete section C, provided similar provisions were included

in the terms of reference of the High Commissioner,

!

Miss MEAGHER (Canada) asked whether the last fi‘e lines in section A

were to be taken as referring to the paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 thereof,

Sectipn D sevmed to require clarification. It was difficult to understand
exactly what was meant by the words "or any other act contrary to/éhe surposes and
principles of the Charter of the United Nations", The responsibilities for

carrying out the purposes and principles of the Charter were incumbent on Member



1/4C,7/5R,159
page 13

States, not on individuals., She asked what sort of porson, becoming a refugee,
would be denied the benefits of protection under the Convention by that provision.
The phrase "in its opinion" in the saue paragraph seencd to open the door to

serious abuse.

Mr. ROCHEFCRT (France) replied, first, that the three provisions
contained in section A, paragraphs 1 - 3, of the French amendment formed a -ompleto

whole osnd werc intended to apply to the same persons.,

Section D reproduceé the text of section C of the Ad hoc Cormittec's text,
and also appeared in the Constitution of IRO. It was clear that every sovereign
State had the right to deal with war criminals as it saw fit, but the purpose of
the text was to make it clear that the benefits of international protection

could not be extended to such persons,

Mr. HENKIN (United States of America), speaking as a member of the
Ad hoc Conmittee on Statelessness and Related Problems, explained that there had
been considerable divergence of opinion on the drafting of seetion € of the
definition, reproduced as section D in the French text. The object of the provision
was to deny the United Nations mantle and international refugee status to war
criminals, but as war criminals were difficult to define, and scme countries used

the term loosely, the determination was left open to the Contracting States in question,

Commenting on the statement made by the representative of France concerning
section B, he did not believe that it was necessary to include provision that no
two States could bring other categories of refugees under the Convuntion without
the intervention of the General Assembly. As the Convention required the agree-
ment of all Contracting States, a protocol seemed the only means of adding further

categories

. Mr, FEARNIEY (United Kinpgdom) suggested that the French draft of
article 1 should be taken as the basis for discussion, since nc one had objected
to it in principle

Annex IT of the Ad hoc Committee's report (E/1618, pagze 39) contained an



E/AC,7/SR,159
page 14

interpretation of suction A, paragraph 3. Since therc ias little value in a draft
Convention which needed a second document containing special interprdations of it,
he thought that the interpretation on that page should be included in the Convention
itself, which was what the French draft did.

Paragraph B provided two stages, each of which would present considerable
difficulties, before further categories of refugees could be brought within the
scope of the Convention. Since it would be difficult encugh to ensure agreement by
all the Parties to the Convention, he suggested that the provision for a prior
rocormendation by the General Assembly should be deleted, particularly as such a

provision might result in unnecessary delay, if not a complete deadlock,

Mr. HENKIN (United States of America) suggested that, since there had
been no objection to using the French text as the basis for further consideration
_of article 1, a small drafting group might be set up to make the changes already

suggested and submit a revised text for consideration at the next meeting,

Mr, de ALBA (Mexico) expressed the view that as several representatives
had not yet beun given an opportunity of expressing their views on article 1, it
would be premature to adopt the French text as the basis for discussion and to
re-draft it on the basié of amendments which had themselves been inadequately

discussed,

Mr, FEARNLEY (United Kingdom) thought it might be possible to decide at
once that further consideration of article 1 should be based on the French text,
but that it was too early to re-draft it in accordance with the suggestions made

at the present and previous meetings.

Mr, CABADA (Peru) suggested that the Chairman should put the guestion
to the vote,

| The CHAIRMAN said that as the United Statés representative was not
pressing his suggestion that a drafting group be set up, and as several delegations
had not commented on the French draft, he would bc reluctant to ask at that stage
for a vote on the question whether that text should become the basis for the
Committee's consideration.

The meeting roses at 4,55 p.m.






